

UNDERGRADUATE STUDENT CONGRESS

Session CX General Body Meeting 7:00 pm, Tuesday, October 31, 2023 Dale 103

Call to Order Opening Roll Call

Mission Statement: The mission of the University of Oklahoma Student Government Association Undergraduate Student Congress is to represent the interests of undergraduate students in their pursuit of academic and individual achievement. The Undergraduate Student Congress is committed to building a strong campus community, promoting civic engagement, and enhancing the quality of the undergraduate experience at the University of Oklahoma.

Moment of Silence: 20 Second Moment of Silence to allow an opportunity for reflection.

Approval of Minutes | October 24, 2023

On a motion to approve the minutes Strickland seconded by Aslam

Officer Reports -

- **Chair's Report:** SGA voting is open. We hold elections twice a year. This semester we will elect President, Vice President, and reps. We will see our appointment four our new HD chair. We are holding interviews for Superior Court Appointments.
- Vice Chair's Report: Thank you to Representative Reynolds for bringing cupcakes. CSP's are due today. Please fill out the form. I have a spreadsheet where you can check if you have been marked off. My office hours will be cancelled tomorrow. The SGA merch went through. We chalked around campus to promote elections. We also put up signs. We will be doing a post for Native Heritage Month, if you would like to be featured, please fill out the form I send out.
- Secretary's Report: Nothing.

Committee Reports-

- **Campus Outreach, Safety, and Concerns:** COSCO met and discussed our projects. Thanks to Hope for chairing the meeting.
- **Congressional Administration:** ConAd met and we saw two bills that we gave a rec of due pass.
- External Affairs: EA met and discussed projects.
- **Human Diversity:** If you are in HD please come talk to me.
- **Sustainability:** Susty met and we also had out trash walk. We appointed a new liaison, Kendall Cousins.
- University Policy: Upol met and saw one bill, we gave it a rec of due pass.
- Ways and Means: WAM met and saw Aux 8.

Liaison Reports

• Gilson-Bond: I went to the Environmental Science Student Association, and they talked about going on a hike next month.

Special Orders Student Concern Link

Items to Be Considered

On a motion to see CB-110-16 Strickland seconded by Craig

• CB-110-16 "Session CX Human Diversity Committee Chair Appointment Act" (Exec, Do Pass) (Halsey-Kraus)

Authors Explanation:

We interviewed for this chair position last week. This was the only applicant, but we are very happy with this applicant. We love and adore Hope. She is the vice-chair of COSCO. Hope has shown great initiative in the body especially with tasks given to her off the cuff. I am grateful for her. She had a lot of ambition for HD. We want someone who will put forth the energy to keep HD going 6:48 remaining for questions

- Cantrell: What are the ideas you have for HD?
 - My biggest idea is working on projects and legislation relating to the ADRC. I would like to put posters on campus. I loved that Ezra wrote about Students In Recovery, and I want to find legislation like that. I am not diverse, but I am happy to help in any way I can.
- Houston: How will you help students who have a hard time getting in touch with the ADRC?
 - I will reach out to the ADRC and making an infographic so the information is more widely known.
- You are very involved, do you feel like adding this position will be too much on your plate?
 My passion knows no bounds.

23-0-0

On a motion to view AB-110-08 Gilson-Bond seconded by Dunn

• AB-110-08 "Auxiliary Allocation 8 Act of 2023-2024" (WAM, Do Pass) (Gulam)

Authors Explanation:

We allocated over \$9000 to different organizations.

7:55 remaining for questions.

- Halsey-Kraus: What capital investments is the Big Event purchasing?
 - They are using this for another van to transport volunteers.
- Halsey-Kraus: What is the OU Food Pantry using their allocation for?
 - They are asking for more office supplies and another folding table.

23-0-0

On a motion to see CB-110-17 and CB-110-18 as a block Gilson-Bond seconded by Dunn

- CB-110-17 "Removal of the Student Environmental Coalition Act" (ConAd, Do Pass) (Cantrell/Houston)
- CB-110-18 "Sustainability Committee Responsibility Act of 2023" (ConAd, Do Pass) (Cantrell/Houston)

Authors Explanation:

Houston: This first bill get rid of the Student Environemtal Coalition. I am the only member, and I am not the chair because you can only be the chair for one year. There is not a need for this to exist because this was a connection between SGA and other RSO's, but Susty can handle this. I have already contacted the RSO's and given them the contact of my vice chair.

Cantrell: The second bill adds the language that existed in the Code Annotated for the SEC and moving it to the roles of Susty.

6:21 remaining for questions

- Strickland: Who is the vice chair a liaison to?
 - All environmental RSO's on campus. We have a list of these.
- Strickland: Have you spoken to the President about this change?
 No, but he does not know this exists.

23-0-0

On a motion to see CR-110-19 Harris seconded by Mowdy

• CR-110-09 "Only One Textbooks and Tuition All Inclusive Act" (UPol, Do Pass) (Reynolds)

Authors Explanation:

This is a bill that will include our books within our tuition. This will benefit both students and the university. We are only getting 35% back on our buybacks, but if you drop in time, you will get 100% back. It will gradually go down. You will get 0% back if you wait too long. When you order books from an outside source, it takes three weeks. As soon as you sign up for a class, this will immediately send you the books required. You can opt out. We will be the first D1 school to do this. Smaller schools already do this. Thank you to my co-author Representative Kathuria and my co-sponsors, Representatives Awoyemi and Brown.

5:54 seconds remaining for questions

- Dunn: Have you been advocating this policy to administration?
 - Yes, I have talked with the Director of Financial Aid and Matt. Both are very excited about this.
- Cantrell: Do you anticipate that the cost of materials will increase the cost of tuition for those who buy books from a third-party source?
 - You can opt out of this. I do not think it will increase tuition.
- Gilson-Bond: Can you opt out of costs tied to tuition?
 - Yes. They will be a part of it, but you can opt out the program.
- Gilson-Bond: How often do you have to opt out of this?
 - You opt out of this every semester when you enroll.
- Houston: Does this apply to classes who have books and not textbooks?
 - It applies to textbooks and supplies that professors post are required.
- Houston: Will books that students have to read be included?
 - Yes, it is up to the professor on if they put it as required.
- Cousins: Will the opt out option be publicized and easy to navigate?
 - Yes. It is up to administrators to make it this way.

On a motion to extend time for questions by five minutes Gilson-Bond seconded by Aslam

- Rhoads: Do you think this program will lower the cost of materials?
 - Yes, because we will be buying bulk.
- Strickland: Where would the books I sell back go to?
 - You will have the option to keep them or give them back to the university.
- Cantrell: Would the opt out be per class per semester?
 - You would opt out of the program.
- Keupen: When would this go into effect?
 - As soon as the administration can set it up, I assume it will be soon because they liked the idea.

- Aslam: Is there any way to opt out permanently?
 - I think they would have that option, but if not, you will opt out each semester when you enroll.
- Dunn: Are you aware of the Inclusive Access Program where you add a fee onto the tuition for a book? Will this look the same as that but larger?

o Yes.

• Cantrell: Is there a way that you would work with administration to make the opt out option clearer?

• Yes. It will be more visible.

On a motion to extend time for questions by three minutes Aslam seconded by Whately

- Mowdy: Do you have plans to expand this program to other class materials?
 Yes.
- Aslam: if there a safeguard in place for the bookstore to increase the price of textbooks?
 This should lower the cost because they are buying in bulk.
- Gilson-Bond: Wouldn't it be easier to just expand the textbook on reserve program that is already offered?
 - This program gives the option to opt out.
- Fisher: Is there any talk on how this will affect students on scholarships?
 - This will not affect the scholarships; it just puts your price of books into tuition.

On a motion to debate Gilson-Bond

Pro:

Dunn: I think this program sounds like a great idea. As a business student, most of my classes already are set up this way with inclusive access. I get an e-mail beginning of this semester saying like these are the books that are going to be added on your tuition and if you want to opt out of any individual book, you can. Otherwise, it gets added, and then at the beginning of this semester I have to scramble to figure out which books I need to don't need. My professors have never had a textbook that I don't use, and a lot of this has a business page or a lot of my homework is based on the same online textbooks. So if everything was as clean and straightforward as that system, I think this would be a great way to go forward.

Rhoads: As someone who is here on scholarship, usually when tuition increases, they raise the scholarship. Textbook buying is difficult for me. This would be cheaper for me.

Awoyemi: The certain books we have to pay either way, but this makes it cheaper per student. With business students we either pay out of pocket or it goes into our tuition, but it will be cheaper overall.

Opposition:

Gilson-Bond: As a student on Oklahoma's Promise, I get nothing from this bill. Oklahoma's Promise matches my tuition at a set cost and OU maxes that out. I have to pay out of pocket anyway because of this. If I have a 100-dollar book and I sell it in four weeks, I would get more than 50 dollars. I think it is better to sell them to someone who needs it rather then helping the University. It would be more cost effective for low-income students to expand the current program. Pro:

Rhoads: The textbook on reserve system only uses one textbook and you have to hope that it is there. You also cannot take it home. This program would not be able to upscale.

Mowdy: The opposition brough up the point of students not checking emails, it is not the universities responsibility to make sure we check emails.

Bento: With Oklahoma Promise, life would go on as usual for people because they would either opt out and pay out of pocket or pay through Bursar.

On a motion to move to the previous question Dunn seconded by Mowdy 23-0-0

Authors Summation:

Oklahoma Promise will not be affected. This bill is written to help those that are in need. We came up with this to help people purchase books. You sign up for your class and you can opt out. 17-5-1

-Follow-Up Reports Announcements and Comments

- Landry: The Director of Ignite has a message saying "I am reaching out to college women currently serving in student government for an upcoming community building event. As a woman who served in student government during my own college years, I saw a need for more spaces to connect with other women in leadership roles. We are gathering women in student government across the country for a **College Council on November 16**. You'll learn from women in policy who have served in student government roles as well as women who are currently serving in student government." I will link this in the group me and it counts as a CSP.
- Strickland: It is election week. Happy Halloween. It is time for Spooks.
- Awoyemi: The Black Business Network has been founded. It is in Price and for Black students in Business. Keep this on your radar.
- Ahmadi: There have been 1884 votes casted.
- Dunn: As my job as Parliamentarian, it is my job to inform the body of Roberts Rules of Order, Parliamentary Procedure, and standard rules. An abstention vote should only be used in a small criteria of votes, most notably when you have a moral, financial, or another conflict of interest that would be impacted by your vote. Your constituents count on you to represent them within the body therefore it is your responsibility to do so with their best intentions in mind. Using an abstention vote in an unwarranted circumstance exploits their vote to entrust you. Please vote to the best of your ability with your district and community in mind.
- Landry: OU Food Services sent out a mass email with a survey.
- Ferguson: The non-profit fair is happening tomorrow. There is free lunch.

Final Roll Call

Adjourn

On a motion to adjourn Wolthuis seconded by Craig

Chair: Abby Halsey-Kraus Vice-Chair: Amelia Landry Secretary: Carolyn Berggren

UNDERGRADUATE STUDENT CONGRESS CONGRESSIONAL SESSION CX October 31st, 2023

GRADUATE STUDENT SENATE SENATE SESSION GF23 November 2nd, 2023

CONGRESSIONAL BILL AB-110-08 SENATE BILL NO. GF23-XX

AS INTRODUCED

An act relating to appropriations; providing for short title; stating purpose; appropriating Auxiliary Funding for the 2023-2024 process; stating appropriation guidelines; establishing expiration deadline; directing transfer of unused funds by deadline; and providing an effective date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE UNIVERSITY OF OKLAHOMA STUDENT GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION:

- Section 1: This act shall be known and may be cited as the "Auxiliary Allocation 8 Act of 2023-2024"
- **Section 2:** PURPOSE. The purpose of this act is to appropriate the funds of the University of Oklahoma Student Government Association to the organizations mentioned within.

Section 3: APPROPRIATION. The following amounts are hereby allocated to

Organization	Programs, Events & Activities	Capital Investments	Office and General Expenses	Total
American Society of Civil Engineers	300			300
Big Event		815		815
Kappa Kappa Psi National Honorary Band Fraternity - Delta Chapter	1755			1755
Minorities in Agriculture, Natural Resources, and Related Sciences	75		200	275
OU Fencing Club		810		810
OU Food Pantry Student Association	3818.75	213.80		4032.55
OU History Club	400			400
Psychology Graduate Student Association	151			151
Sustainable Energy Society	685.93			685.93
<i>u. t</i>			TOTAL:	9224.48

Section 4: All guidelines and provisions in Title 10 of the Code Annotated shall apply to all funds appropriated in this act.

Section 5: This fiscal year for the account listed in these sections shall end May 10, 2024

Section 6:	All unspent money remaining in the accounts listed in Section 3 General Account after May 10, 2024, and the remaining appropriate	
Section 7:	This act shall become effective when passed in accordance with the	SGA Constitution.
Author(s):	Zuyyin Izza Gulam, Chair, SGA Budget Committee	
Co-Author(s):	SGA Budgetary Committee	
Action taken by	motion by: Gilson-Bond seconded by Dunn Student Congress: 23-0-0 r of Student Congress:	Date:
Submitted on a r Action taken by Verified by Chai	Senate:	Date:
Approved by SC	GA President:	Date:

UNDERGRADUATE STUDENT CONGRESS CONGRESSIONAL SESSION CX October 31, 2023

GRADUATE STUDENT SENATE SENATE SESSION GF23 November 2, 2023

CONGRESSIONAL RESOLUTION CR-110-09 SENATE RESOLUTION NO. GFXX-XX

AS INTRODUCED

A Concurrent Resolution recommending that OU provide a textbooks-in-tuition program; and providing for distribution.

- Whereas: The price of textbooks is currently separate from the cost of tuition at the University of Oklahoma, purchased through a secondary source; and
- Whereas: Textbooks-in-tuition program is currently primarily implemented at private schools and aviation schools, including Thomas More College in Kentucky, Schreiner University in Texas, and Spartan College of Aeronautics, as well as other lowenrollment colleges and technical schools¹; and
- Whereas: The University of Oklahoma will benefit from the implementation of an all-inclusive program by retaining unused funds from textbooks when students fail to withdraw from classes on time or by the final drop date to receive a "W"; and
- Whereas: The students will benefit from the implementation of the all-inclusive program by receiving 25% 100% refund on textbooks purchased when classes are dropped on time; and
- Whereas: The University of Oklahoma would be one of the first Division I schools to implement this type of all-inclusive textbooks-in-tuition program; and
- Whereas: The implementation of the textbooks-in-tuition program would benefit the veteran and their dependents/spouses. Veteran's benefits have permissible mandatory charges assessed by a school (other than tuition and room and board) that are necessary for the pursuit of an approved program of education and are the same amount for all students (GI Bill and non- GI bill). Mandatory fees may be for items,

 $[\]label{eq:linear} 1\ https://pupnmag.com/article/how-bundling-textbooks-into-tuition-is-transforming-the-college-experience/#:~:text=Two%20of%20the%20schools%20currently,textbooks%2Din%2Dtuition%20program and the second seco$

such as books, that could be obtained from a source other than the school as long as the fee is assessed to all students²; and

Whereas: Textbooks would arrive on/or before start of classes with implementation of the textbooks- in-tuition program. textbooks often arrive three to four weeks into the semester when purchased through a secondary source; therefore

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE UNIVERSITY OF OKLAHOMA UNDERGRADUATE STUDENT CONGRESS AND THE GRADUATE STUDENT SENATE, CONCURRING THEREIN THAT:

- **Section 1:** Title: This resolution shall be known and may be cited as the "Only One Textbooks and Tuition All Inclusive Act."
- **Section 2**: The University of Oklahoma Student Government Association recommends that OU Division of Enrollment Management adopt the following:
 - 1) Include textbook costs with tuition costs during each enrollment term.
 - a) Textbooks would be mailed to the student when registration for each class is completed.
 - 2) Students must withdraw from the class by the first official drop date to receive a 100% refund on purchased textbooks; percentages will reduce as follows:
 - a) One week later: 75% refund back to the student on textbooks after withdrawal from class.
 - b) Two weeks later: 50% refund back to the student on textbooks after withdrawal from the class.
 - c) Three weeks later: 25% refund back to the student on textbooks after withdrawal from the class.
 - d) Final day to drop with a "W": No refund to the student, OU retains all remaining funds directed towards textbooks.
- **Section 3:** Copies of this resolution will be sent to:
 - Jeff Blahnik, Vice President of Enrollment Management
 - Beth Korhonen, Financial Services Director
 - Andrea Zepeda, Bursar Operations Director
 - Jennifer Trimmer, Director of OU Veteran Student Services
 - Kyle Butcher, Oklahoma Association of Transfer Students
 - OU Daily

² https://<u>www.knowva.ebenefits.va.gov/system/templates/selfservice/va_ssnew/help/customer/locale/en-</u>US/portal/55440000001018/content/554400000149088/School-Certifying-Official-Handbook-Online#Chapter%2033%20Benefit%20Payments

Author(s): Representative	Michael T. Reynolds Sr., Atmospheric and Geographic S	Sciences District
Co-Author(s):	Shrey Kathuria, Life Sciences District Representative	
Co-Sponsor(s):	Ayomide Awoyemi, Business District Representative Khiala Brown, Fine Arts District Representative	
	motion by: Harris seconded by Mowdy y Congress: 17-5-1	
	air of Congress:	Date:
Submitted on a Action taken b		
Verified by Cha	air of Senate:	Date:
Approved by S	GA President:	Date:

UNDERGRADUATE STUDENT CONGRESS CONGRESSIONAL SESSION CX October 31st, 2023

CONGRESSIONAL BILL CB-110-16

AS INTRODUCED

A Congressional Act of Procedure appointing the Human Diversity Committee Chair; providing short title; and providing an effective date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE UNIVERSITY OF OKLAHOMA STUDENT GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION UNDERGRADUATE STUDENT CONGRESS:

Section 1:	Title: This act shall be known and may be cited as the "Session CX Human Diversity Committee Chair Appointment Act."
Section 2:	Purpose: The purpose of this act is inherent in the Title.
Section 3:	APPOINTMENT: The following person shall be appointed to Committee and other positions as follows:
	Human Diversity - Chair: Hope Rhoads
Section 4:	This act shall become effective when passed in accordance with the SGA Constitution.
Author(s):	Chair Abby Halsey-Kraus, Undergraduate Student Congress
Co-Author(s):	Vice Chair Amelia Landry, Undergraduate Student Congress Secretary Carolyn Berggren, Undergraduate Student Congress

Submitted on a Motion by: Strickland seconded by Craig Action taken by Congress 23-0-0 Verified by Chair: _____ Date: _____

UNDERGRADUATE STUDENT CONGRESS CONGRESSIONAL SESSION CX October 31, 2023

GRADUATE STUDENT SENATE SENATE SESSION GF23 November 2, 2023

CONGRESSIONAL BILL CB-110-17 SENATE BILL GF23-XX

AS INTRODUCED

An Act of Legislation related to the Student Environmental Coalition, providing for short title, providing for codification, and providing for an effective date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE UNIVERSITY OF OKLAHOMA STUDENT GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION:

- **Section 1**: Title: This act shall be known and may be cited as the "Removal of the Student Environmental Coalition Act"
- Section 2: Purpose: The purpose of this act shall be to remove the Student Environmental Coalition from the OUSGA Code Annotated to pass the responsibility to the Congress Sustainability Committee.
- **Section 3**: AMENDATORY: The University of Oklahoma Student Government Association Code Annotated § Title IX, Chapter 4 will be amended as follows, with strikethrough indicating a removed section, and <u>underline</u> indicating added sections.

Chapter IX 4 Student Environmental Coalition

- 1. Delegation Purpose. The SGA Student Environmental Coalition, "SEC," will ensure that various environmental groups communicate well to accomplish goals in the most effective way possible and serve as environmental advisors to the campus at large.
- 2. Membership Requirements and Responsibilities. All students currently enrolled at the University of Oklahoma shall be eligible to serve as a representative for any campus environmental initiative, RSO, or non-student organization. Faculty and staff are also eligible to serve on the coalition in order to speak for university-based initiatives. Students must remain in good standing with the University.
- 3. Officers. The officers of the organization shall be Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary.
 - a. Eligibility. Members of SEC in good academic standing will be eligible to run for office; the chair of SEC must have adequate time to devote towards stewarding the council.
 - b. ,Selection. SEC Officers will be elected by a majority vote of current SEC members. Current SEC members shall be defined as members who have attended at least sixty percent of the meetings of the previous semester.

- c. Term Length and Limit. All SEC Officers will be elected for one academic year. With exception of the Chair, officers may serve more than one academic year, but they shall be reelected by the coalition each year.
- d. Responsibilities. The Officers will work closely with the SGA and, most importantly, the various Registered Student Organizations related to Environmental Sustainability to ensure the mission of SEC is actualized.
- e. Vacancies. If a vacancy arises, an interim officer will be chosen by the current members of the SEC by majority vote or consensus. The coalition will decide how officer responsibilities will be transferred for the remainder of the academic year.
- f. Officer Removal. The SEC shall have the authority to remove an officer with a simple majority with the advice and consent of the legislature.
- Internal Proceedings. The Student Environmental Coalition shall establish rules of procedure for the internal operations for the organization. These rules shall be published and available to students upon request. Any proposed and adopted rule changes must be sent to the SGA President, Graduate Student Senate Chair, Chair of the Undergraduate Student Congress, and Campus Activities Council Chair.
 Meetings
 - a. Meeting Times. The chair of the SEC shall establish meeting times for the full academic semester by the third academic week of each semester. The meetings shall be open to the public and minutes will be recorded by the secretary for future records.
 - Attendance. The SEC shall function as a resource to members.
 Responsibility to attend shall be strongly advocated for by the officers. SEC members must attend at least sixty percent of the meetings in order to vote in officer elections
- 6. Power and Authority. The SEC shall be empowered to create any such committees, boards, commissions, or other such entities that it deems are necessary to further its purpose.
- 7. Funding. The SGA Student Environmental Coalition shall be provided financial support through the Executive Branch.
- Section 4: This act shall become effective when passed in accordance with the SGA Constitution.
- Author(s):Madeline Cantrell, Communications District Representative
Rylee Houston, Sustainability Committee Chair

~ ...

Submitted on a Motion by: Gilson-Bond seconded by Duni	n
Action taken by Congress: 23-0-0	
Verified by Chair of Congress:	Date:
Submitted on a Motion by:	
Action taken by Senate	
Verified by Chair of Senate:	Date:
Approved by SGA President:	Date:

UNDERGRADUATE STUDENT CONGRESS CONGRESSIONAL SESSION CX October 31, 2023

CONGRESSIONAL BILL CB-110-18

AS INTRODUCED

An Act of Procedure relating to the Sustainability Committee; providing for short title, providing for codification, and providing for an effective date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE UNIVERSITY OF OKLAHOMA STUDENT GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION UNDERGRADUATE STUDENT CONGRESS:

- Section 1: Title: This act shall be known and may be cited as the "Sustainability Committee Responsibility Act of 2023."
- **Section 2:** Purpose: The purpose of this act shall be to make the Sustainability Committee the point of contact for environmental RSOs. The sustainability committee will take on the responsibility of ensuring the environmental RSO's compliance with the SGA Code annotated and communicating effectively with each other regarding projects and events.
- **Section 3**: AMENDATORY: The University of Oklahoma Student Government Association Undergraduate Student Congress Bylaws §Section 6.1.5a will be amended as follows, with strikethrough indicating a removed section, and <u>underline</u> indicating added sections.

A. COMMITTEE PURPOSE The Sustainability Committee shall address any and all issues environmental sustainability within SGA, at the University, or among the undergraduate student body. The Committee shall strive to improve environmental consciousness among the undergraduate student body and shall advocate for environmentally conscious policies at the University. The Committee shall be responsible for ensuring environmental RSO's compliance with the SGA Code Annotated, as well as be the primary point of contact for these organizations. The committee shall also ensure that environmental RSOs communicate effectively with each other regarding events and projects.

- Section 4: This act shall become effective when passed in accordance with the SGA Constitution.
- Author(s):Madeline Cantrell, Communications District Representative
Rylee Houston, Sustainability Committee Chair

Submitted on a Motion by: Gilson-Bond seconded by Dunn Action taken by Congress: 23-0-0 Verified by Chair of Congress:

Date:

	51-0	α		31-00	t				
	Initial	Final	Last name	AB-110-08	CR-110-09	CB-110-16	CB-110-17/18		Return to ?
Aslam			Aslam	У	n	У	У		у
Awoyemi	x	X	Awoyemi	У	У	У	у		у
Baggett	x	x	Baggett	y	y.	y	y		y
Bento	x	×	Bento	v	v	v	v		y
Brown	x	×	Brown	v	v	v	v		v
	ex	x	Cantrell	v	n	v	v		v
Cantrell	x	×	Carter	,		ľ	,		·
Carter	а	a	Craig	v	v	v	v		v
Draig	x	×	de Mahy	,	·	1	/		,
de Mahy	а	a	Divirgilio						
DiVirgilio	ex	ex	Duncan			-			
Duncan	a	a	Dunn	y	v	v	v		v
Dunn	x	×			v				
Ferguson	x	a	Ferguson	У	y ab	У	У		У
Fisher	x	x	Fisher	У	ao	У	У		У
oley	а	a	Foley						
Gilson Bond	x	x	Gilson Bor	У	n	У	У		у
Harris	x	x	Harris	У	n	У	У		У
slas	ex	ex	islas						
athuria	ex	ex	Kathuria						
Keupen	x	x	Keupen	У	У	У	У		у
Valone	а	a	Malone						
Mowdy	x	x	Mowdy	У	У	У	У		у
Nguyen	x	x	Nguyen	У	У	У	У		у
Ramirez	ex	x	Ramirez	У	n	У	У		y
Reynolds	x	x	Reynolds	v	v	v	v		v
Rhoads	x	x	Rhoads	y .	v	v	v		y
Segunda	x	x	Segunda	v	v	v	v		v
Strickland	x	x	Strickland	v	v	v	v		v
Walker	x	x	Walker	v	v	v	v		v
Near	ex	ex	Wear	1	/	/	1		-
Whately	x	x	Whately	v	v	v	v		v
Vilson	а	а	Wilson	1	7	7	1		1
Nolthuis	x	x	Wilson Wolthius	v	v		v		v
PRESENT	2	21 22	worthius	y2	1	y 7 2:	7	0	γ 23
ABSENT		6 7				_			
EXCUSED		6 4							0